PRE-MEETING AGENDA
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER (A108)
56 CHURCH STREET
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213

NOVEMBER 13,2023 6:00pm

As a matter of convenience, members of the public are invited to listen, observe and
participate in public meetings by Internet video conference. Presenters and others
interested in a particular matter for discussion are encouraged to attend the meeting in-
person. The City is not responsible for technical issues that may occur that interfere with
the virtual meeting. The City Council, at its sole discretion, may proceed with its in-person
business meeting regardless of whether virtual attendees can hear and/or observe the
proceedings. The City intends to make the meeting available by way of the Zoom app (re:
Meeting ID 801-559-1126, password 11132023).

1. Guardrail costs for east Cherokee Road-Ronnie Vaughn (See attached information.
This item may be added to the formal agenda.)

2. Update on the City’s United Way campaign-Ronnie Vaughn

3. Speed limit recommendations for Colonial Hills-Chief Loggins (See attached
information.)

4. Contract amendment with Gresham Smith Partners for the Old Brook Trail and
Canterbury Road bridge projects-Sammy Harton of Gresham Smith Partners (See
attached information. This item may be added to the formal agenda.)

5. Conditional Use for an office in the 2™ floor of the old Barton Clay Jewelers location
at 2701 Cahaba Road-Dana Hazen (See attached information. This item may be
added to the formal agenda.)

6. ROW encroachment agreement for property at 3613 Montclair Road between

Brookshire Condos and Gaywood Circle-Dana Hazen (See attached information.
This item may be added to the formal agenda.)

7. Executive Session



Sam Gaston

From: Ronald Vaughn <vaughnr@mtnbrook.org> on behalf of Ronald Vaughn
Sent: Monday, November 06, 2023 2:02 PM

To: Sam Gaston

Cc: Daniel Davis; Steven Gay

Subject: Re: Alabama Guardrail

My bad, I only added one additional anchor. The final cost should actually be $52,875.00

Ronnie Vaughn

Public Works Director

City of Mountain Brook AL
3579 East Street

Birmingham , Alabama 35243
205.802.3865 Office
205.967.2631 Fax
vaughnr@mtnbrook.org

On Mon, Nov 6, 2023 at 1:57 PM Ronald Vaughn <vaughnr@mtnbrook.org> wrote:
Sam,

The second page with the largest quote of $44,875.00 is for the Cortin or rust looking guardrail. However, we
need to add $4,000.00 for two additional end anchors which will make the estimate come to $48,875.00.

Ronnie Vaughn

. Public Works Director
City of Mountain Brook AL
3579 East Street
Birmingham , Alabama 35243
205.802.3865 Office
205.967.2631 Fax
vaughnr@mtnbrook.org

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Daniel Davis <davisda@mtnbrook.org>

Date: Fri, Oct 27, 2023 at 1:00 PM

Subject: Fwd: Alabama Guardrail

To: Ronnie Vaughn <vaughnr@mtnbrook.org>, Steven Gay <gayj@mtnbrook.org>

Quote’s for guardrail on Cherokee Rd.
One is for normal gaurdrail, the other is for the Cor-Ten

1



City of Mountain Brook
Cherokee Road
Guardrail Installation - Standard

Alabama Guardrail, Inc.
P.O. Box 126
Cleveland, Alabama 35049

DESCRIPTION QTy UNIT
Steel Beam Guardrail Class A Type 2 737.5 LF
Guardrail End Anchor TY 20 Series(MASH) 2 EA
Total Quote
U,

Signature: 7” ,
Jarnes W. Dillard
Vice President

Date: October 26, 2023

Quoote is good for 60 Days
Utilities located by others
Must be staked for installation

UNIT
COST

40.00

3,600.00

TOTAL
COSsT

29,500.00

7,200.00

36,700.00



City of Mountain Brook
Cherokee Road
Guardrail Installation - Corten

Alabama Guardrail, Inc.
P.O. Box 126
Cleveland, Alabama 35049

DESCRIPTION aty
Steel Beam Guardrail Class A Type 4 737.5
Guardrail End Anchor TY 20 Series(MASH) 2
Total Quote
) X/ )
Signature: S ]

L EW

James W. Dillard
Vice President

Date: October 26, 2023

Quote is good for 60 Days

Utilities located by others

Must be staked for installation

End Anchors will be painted SW6041

UNIT

LF

EA

UNIT TOTAL
CosT CosT

50.00 36,875.00

4,000.00 8,000.00

44,875.00



To: City Council

From: J. Loggins, Chief of Police
Date: November 08, 2023

Re: Speed Limits

Mountain Brook Police Department
Chief Jaye Loggins

101 Tibbett Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

Phone: 205.879.0486

Fax: 205.802.2415

Per your request, I verified posted speed limits in the Colonial Hills neighborhood. The

following are the posted speed limits in the area:

Alden Lane 20 mph
Norman Drive 25 mph
Winthrop Avenue 25 mph

These speed limits are typical in a residential area. I am unaware of any speeding
concerns in this area. I do not see a need in reducing the speed limit(s) in the area and feel they
are sufficient. I will defer to the traffic engineering consultant for a formal recommendation.



‘ Gresham
Y Smith

November 9, 2023

Mr. Sam Gaston, City Manager
City of Mountain Brook

56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, AL 35213

Subject: Revised Additional Services Proposal {(Supplemental Agreement #1)
ALDOT Project No. STPBH-3716(256)
Bridge Replacement on Old Brook Trail Over Little Shades Creek and
Bridge Rehabilitation on Canterbury Road Over Watkins Creek
Mountain Brook, AL
Gresham Smith Project No. 43695.00

Dear Mr. Gaston:

On June 26, 2023, the City Council approved our additional services proposal for the above referenced project in the amount
of $124,253. Please reference our additional services proposal dated April 27, 2023 and Resolution No. 2023-096 (attached
for reference). Since April, ALDOT has been reviewing, and we have been coordinating with ALDOT on the scope of work,
labor effort and the associated fee for these additional services. Based on our discussions with ALDOT, we have been able
to reduce our scope of work and fee for the additional services to $115,794.

However, in our discussions with ALDOT, they will only agree to a supplemental fee amount of $78,917 (pending final
ALDOT approval) as a basis for the 80% federal reimbursement. The biggest reductions are:

s Utility coordination - Because of difficulties we've had coordinating with all of the utility companies to date, we
have already significantly exceeded our original budget for utility coordination, and we estimate that we still have a
significant amount of utility coordination remaining to perform (reference 4/27/2023 proposal for additional
information). ALDOT advised that they understood that the utility coordination efforts are very time consuming,
and they run into the same issues and delays when performing the utility coordination on their projects. However,
ALDOT would not agree to the amount of utility coordination that we submitted.

¢ Bridge redesign effort - ALDOT would not agree to the amount of effort and fee that we feel is needed to complete
the bridge redesign work to hang the water main under the bridge and redesign the north bridge abutment to avoid
having to relocate the existing 21" sanitary sewer main (at a cost of nearly $1M).

2222 Arlington Avenue South GreshamSmith.com

Suite 202
Genuine Ingenuity Birmingham, AL 35205

205.298.9200



‘ N Mr. Sam Gaston

November 9, 2023

Based on the scope of work for these additional services, we feel like the total cost/fee for this work can be reduced to
$115,794. As stated above, ALDOT has only agreed to a fee amount of $78,917, which will be the basis of the 80% federal
reimbursement ($63,134 federal reimbursement + $15,783 local matching funds). We are requesting that the City of
Maountain Brook pay the $36.877 difference. Our re-design work, much of which will result in avoiding the relocation of the
Jefferson County sanitary sewer main, will save nearly $1M (City savings of 20% or $200,000}.

Attached is a table showing the breakdown of the original additional services proposal approved by the City on June 26,
2023, our revised proposal, the ALDOT approved amount and the difference we are requesting that the City pay.

In terms of the City funds for these additional services, the total City funds required for these additional services would be
$52,660:

20% of ALDOT approved amount (20% x $78,917) $15,783
Additional City funding for additional services $36.877
Total City funds $52,660

Summary - In summary, what is being requested of the City with this amended additional services request is:
1. Approval of revised total additional services fee amount of $115,794 for scope of services outlined in April 27, 2023

proposal.
2. Approval of additional $36,877 of City funds (total City funding amount of $52,660) for additional services.

Note that we have submitted our revised proposal to ALDOT in the amount of $78,917, but we have not received their final
approval, so the numbers above could change some based on the final amount approved by ALDOT.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss this revised additional services further, please don't hesitate to contact
Sammy Harton or |,

Sincerely,
ﬁ&' -

Sammy Harton, P.E. Blair Perry, P.E.
Project Manager Principal/Alabama State Transportation Leader
Attachments Supplemental #1 Fee Summary

April 27, 2023 Additional Services Proposal
Copy Ronnie Vaughn - City of Mountain Brook
Gresham

Smith

Page | 2



ALDOT Project No. STPBH-3716(256)

Bridge Replacement on Old Brook Trail over Little Shades Creek and Bridge Rehabilitation on Canterbury Road over Watkins Creek

City of Mountain Brook
Supplemental Agreement #1

Fee Summary

Originally

submitted to and |Revised

approved by City |Proposal Approved by
Task 6/26/2023 11/6/2023 |ALDOT Difference
Update Environmental Documents (Old Brook Trail and Canterbury Road) $7,372 $3,209 $3,209 SO
Bridge Redesign and Plans (Old Brook Trail) $45,009 546,492 $36,317 $10,175
Additional Geotechnical Investigation and Recommendations (Old Brook Trail) $10,474 $10,474 $10,474 ]
Update Roadway Plans (Old Brook Trail and Canterbury Road) $25,864 $19,849 $28,917 ($9,068)
Additional Utility Coordination (Old Brook Trail) $35,534 $35,770 $35,770
Total $124,253 $115,794 $78,917 $36,877

Note - ALDOT approved a small amount of additional utility coordination but wanted it as a line item in the Update Roadway Plans task

City funds
Original City approved supplement (20% of total)
Revised (20% of ALDOT approved + 100% of Difference)

City funds - Alternative

Relocate Jefferson County Sewer Main (20% of $1M)

Update Environmental Documents (20% of ALDOT approved amount)
Bridge Redesign{Water Main){Old Brook Trail)(20% of ~ $15k)
Additional Utility Coordination (20% of ~ $30k)

Total City funds (Alternative)

$24,851
$52,660

$200,000
$642
$3,000
$6,000
$209,642




ALDOT Project No. STPBH-3716(256)

Bridge Replacement on Old Brook Trail over Little Shades Creek and Bridge Rehabilitation on Canterbury Road over Watkins Creek

City of Mountain Brook
Supplemental Agreement #1

Fee Summary

Originally

submitted to and |Revised

approved by City |Proposal Approved by
Task 6/26/2023 11/6/2023 |ALDOT Difference
Update Environmental Documents (Old Brook Trail and Canterbury Road) $7,372 $3,209 $3,209 S0
Bridge Redesign and Plans (Old Brook Trail) $45,009 $46,492 $36,317 $10,175
Additional Geotechnical Investigation and Recommendations (Old Brook Trail) $10,474 $10,474 $10,474 S0
Update Roadway Plans (Old Brook Trail and Canterbury Road) $25,864 519,849 $28,917 (59,068)
Additional Utility Coordination (Old Brook Trail) $35,534 $35,770 $35,770
Total $124,253 $115,794 $78,917 $36,877

Note - ALDOT approved a small amount of additional utility coordination but wanted it as a line item in the Update Roadway Plans task

i i ) - i
City funds |_ A TiguaL. CosTs )
Original City approved supplement (20% of total)
Revised {20% of ALDOT approved + 100% of Difference)

City funds - Alternative ( CosT SANW Q\‘SB
Relocate Jefferson County Sewer Main (20% of $1M)

Update Environmental Documents (20% of ALDOT approved amount)
Bridge Redesign(Water Main)(Old Brook Trail){20% of ~ $15k)

Additional Utility Coordination (20% of ~ $30k)
Total City funds (Alternative)

$52,660 o< “ToTAL ©¥ Tk

$24,851 " g Rl-CiTy Cos

$200,000
$642

$3,000

$6,000
$209,642

,}ﬂ\

T >

o-\ x/@”&

L N‘T\/ (_C::»STT

Seast] Mg + )
(‘7\\ \I\;{T ‘g\v\;\z MWM
\/m‘»uv’\%

@;\) Mowe ATIT 4- AL Rca

T+ SPiee Lire s



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-096

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City
Council hereby accepis the additional services proposal submitted by Gresham, Smith, in the form as
attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the Bridge replacement on Old Brook Trail over Little
Shades Creek and Bridge Rehabilitation on Canterbury Road over Watkins Creek.

ADOPTED: This 26th day of June, 2023. / ra B

APPROVED: This 26th day of June, 2023.

CERTAFICATION
I, Heather Richards, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above

to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at
its regular meeting held on June 26, 2023, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting.

Citd Clerk

Gresham Smith additional services proposal-Old Brook Trail bridge project 2023-096



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

Dana O. Hazen, AICP

City Planner

56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213
Telephone: 205/802-3816

Fax: 205.879.6913
hazend@mtnbrook.org
www.minbrook.org

DATE: November 13, 2023

TO: Mayor, City Council, City Manager, City Attorney
FROM: Dana Hazen, City Planner

RE: 2701 Cahaba Road, Mountain Brook Village (previous Barton-Clay building)
Conditional Use — Office Use

The Barton-Clay building is under new ownership, and the new owner seeks to establish his personal business
office use on the second floor. The future tenant for the first floor has not been selected, but it is anticipated
that it may be may be food use or retail use (proper city approvals to be applied for at such time).

The proposed second floor office use is what has been described by the new owner of the building as an
alternate (second location); the primary office use being located in Birmingham is to remain. As such, it is
not anticipated that there will be full-time use of the proposed second floor office.

The attached floor plan indicates 5 offices with one a reception desk, for a potential for 6 people to utilize the
offices at any given time. The applicant has indicated that the second floor previously contained offices for
three people (in conjunction with the Barton-Clay operation). Of course the previous second floor office use
was ancillary to the primary retail use on the first floor (Barton-Clay), so there were likely no full-time
employees utilizing the second floor.

The total square footage for the leasable area of both floors is 7,343 (4091 for the first floor, and 3252 for the
second floor; the basement is excluded from parking calculations per the zoning code). The on-site parking
required for the building (based on second floor office and first floor retail) is 33 parking spaces.

Attached is a survey of the property indicating that all of the street parking abutting this site along Cahaba
Road and Culver Road is in the public ROW (even though it has historically been signed for private use by
Barton-Clay patrons). Therefore, the 13 parking spaces shown on the survey cannot be credited toward on-
site parking. However, the zoning code allows existing uses (that are non-conforming with regard to on-site
parking) to continue and be replaced with like uses in spite of on-site parking deficits. Therefore, this office
use (and any future retail use or evening food use on the first floor) would be allowed without parking being
to-code.

The zoning ordinance requires council approval of office uses as a conditional use, and states that any
proposed conditional use will be reviewed as to the following:

Whether the use would disparately impact public parking in the area;

Whether vehicular or pedestrian circulation would be impacted by the use;
Whether the use is compatible with surrounding existing uses;

Whether the hours of operation or peak traffic times would impact existing uses.



Notes from Applicant:

e number of employees during peak hour; [3-5 depending on the day. Most employees do
not live local and one has another office downtown Birmingham]

¢ where the employees will park [long term parking on perimeter of village]

* hours of operation; [9:00 am -5:00 pm]

e days of the week; [Monday ~ Friday]

o general description; [The space is to be primarily for the owner’s family office and
related entities. One initial tenant will be Trivela, a European League Soccer Club owner.
There will be 3-4 offices used by Trivela and the most employees do not live in Alabama.
The building owner will occupy 2 spaces for his family office. The owner has a business
that is primarily located in downtown Birmingham and will not be full time at the Mtn
Brook location often.]

e patrons expected during a peak hour; [This is not an office for regular visitors/customers.
| can only estimate it would average less than one per day]



ANy Pun

L © L MOXMID SOONCE T

©  AUSH UKD LOW PROFLE LED DOWAIHE
o DR IO DO SoW
AT N Y roumt warm e

e (MDCRT 1D L1 STV

> / . 7 ° = wwmmwer-an.

o
.
.

A = ° 3 w AT TFER. ™ o
- 0 - S
®, 00 ACOUSIC LS BT
SOUNDPLY, WY LSO W, &1 — — —
3 10 47, TR

o s o °
OP, T AT, O

LEVEL 2 - REFLECTED CEILING £Lay
3

o=

RENOVATION OF

2701 CAHABA ROAD
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA

;
3 e
;

3 A
&
&
“

-1 LEVEL 2 - DEMOLITION PLAN LEVEL 2 - NEW FLOOR PLAN

3 18 = T ® o ke




YWVYEVIV 2100dd NIVINNOW A —
aAvod VaVHVD L0LZ
‘ 40 NOILYAONIY

]

g mumm :

gk i :

3ln -.mumu u.

%t m_mmmm“ 3

2 mm g8 S
3 TR

m... g s muw

Gy EasedeR

&

AARCHATECTIR MES 208 UANRLL 1

L

.
1
)
"

.
=
<4
-l
<
<
£
K
3
I
3
-
s
-
3
=
=
-
=
=
=
>
<
el

1 - DEMOLITION PLAN

=g

LE

SR e o e R N S SRR B R T A AR L A a2 e e & S F R an s s aanasae kLS Ly e s 3 EX B iy



suasa

GENERAL NOTES

CODE SYNOPSIS

1. BUILDING CODES: 2021 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE
2021 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE
gg: INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE
2021 INTERNATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE
ALL WORK MUST MEET APPLICABLE BUILDING CODES & ORDINWE
. CDNTWOR TO DEMOUSH EXISTING PARTITIONS, DOORS,
FINISHES AS SHOWN.
. CONTRACTOR TO NOTIFY ARCHITECT IN ADVANCE OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES IN EXISTING CONDITIONS, DKMENSIONS. ETC.
5. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SUBMITTALS ON ALL IAA‘A_TD!‘MS LIGHTING,

we

>

FINISHES, QUIPMENT FOR REVIEW AND APP|

8. ALL MATERU BE NEW AND FIRST QUAU"Y INSTALL MATERIALS
IN wm-l INDUSTRY D MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIO!

NS
7. CONTRACTOR COORDINATE OWNER CONSLLTANTS FOR
TELEPHONE, DA'IA, SECURITY, FURNITURE. & EQUIPMENT.

BASEMENT - DEMOLITION PLAN
178° = bt

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: EXISTING MASONRY & STEEL STRUCTURE
TYPE NA SPRINKLERED

OCCUPANCY:

CROUP B BUSINESS & M MERCANTILE
2ND FLOOR AREA: 3848 GSF EXISTING
1ST FLOOR AREA: 4031 GSF EXISTING
BASEMENT AREA: 2168 GSF EXISTING

TYPE NIB — GROUP B
19,000 SF PER FLOOR & 3 STOREES ALLOWED

STRUCTURAL FRAME 0 HOURS — EXISTING
BEARING WALL 2 EXTERIOR

RIOR NONBEARING
INTE?IOR NONBEARING O
FLOOR CONSTRUCTION Q@ HOUR — EXISTING
ROOF CONSTRUCTION 0 HOUR — EXISTING
SHAFT ENCLOSURE 2 HOURS
MINIMUM INTERIOR FINISHES ARE TO BE CLASS C
MCUPM LO'DS.

- 14 WMS BUSQESS

ISI I'I.DOR — & OCCUPANTS RET/
EXISI'III}M EXIT DOORS ALLOW 180 OCCUPANTS
COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL DISTANCE — 100 FEET

EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE — 100 FEET

MINIMUM CORRIDOR WIDTH 44" PROVIDED

DEAD END CORRIDOR 50 FEET MAXIMUM

NUMBER OF REOUIRED EXITS: 1 (LESS THAN 48 OCCUS
5 FEET EXff ACCESS TRML BISTANCE]
EXITS PROVIDED: t ~ SECOND FL
2 ~ FIRST FLDOR
1 — BASEMENT

RESTROOMS — 2 REQUIRED AND 2 EXISTING FOR 2ND FLOOR BUILDOUT

@V—m BASEMENT - NEW FLOOR PLAN
e ety e S

RENOVATION OF

g
s
g
(a)
gS
30
<0
I
g
vz
od
NZ
s
o)
s



GRAPHIC SCALE

TADLE AT ALL SET A MOV ON
AURVEY.

TABLE A2 THE ADDRESS ©F TMEPRIPERTY S 701 CANASA ROAD, BIRMINGI AW, AL 35273

VALEM HE RAED mmrv ISLOCATED IV,
% AHNZAL AREAS OF 1% MNUAL CHANCE FLO(D

vmmwmusmcﬂswmm FOOT OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAB LESE THAN |
SOUARE MLE; AND AREAS PROTECTEL BY LEVEES FROM 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOCO |

ZONER THE 0.2% ANNUAL

ZONE AE, BASE FLOCD ELEVATIONS DETERVINED.

AS SHOWN ON FEMA FECERA, [NSURANCE, RATE WAk @ (0707 JC0557. PANEL 557 OF 775 MAP.

EFFECTIVE DATE SERTEMBER 2¢, 262

a0

THE SPEGIAL NES SHOW OF WERE THE
CURRENT NATIONAL FLOOD HAZARD LAYER (WFHT). THE NFHL IS A GEOSPATIAL DATABASE AVMD A
PART. A FLOCDINSURAN

TADLE ma: PRoPETY FEETOHOM
ACRES, BASED ON MONUMENTS FOUND OR SET.
TABLE A& TE .
THE PROPIRTY IS Z0NED LOCAL BUSINESS DIBTS Tocry - > o
s o 5 ~
TAmLE AN AL EA
SR o T SURWEY
TAME ABAL suRvE oo NOT
CERTIY AT THAT THE £3 ARE
PN RICAR [XSAIR 17Y AC T COMLIRNT.
TABLE A10A): THE CLIENT DHO NOT BREGIFY ANY PARTY WALLS TO 3E DGSEAVED, = Y PRmREONr
TS A7) T LOATION O 15 I SHOWN U THI SUSVEY ATE BASED ON OBBERVED /s
EVENCE OF ABOVE GROUND APPLRTENANCES AND SOUIFHENT, THE SURVEYOR WAS NOT 3
FROVIDED A LNDERGROUND UTILITY MAD,
TABLE AtS THE NAMER OF THE "HE SURVEY WERE BLDG . ON GORNER
OATAINED FROM THE FFFERRCK COUNTY R ATIAVA TAX ACCESSCR'S WERSITE ON 2.32073
TABLE AV RSCRIT MO FVIDERCT LYY
CONSTRL ADCITIONS. O
TABLE ATR THE N BTREET RIGHT OF WaY 2STORY BRICK
UES. OF RECENT STREET 68 STRLETIOHCR
REPNRS
TABLE AR PROVIDED WTH 257

EASEMENTS OR SERVITLDES THAT BEWESIT T-€ SURIECT PROPERTY.

SCHEDULE B BECTIONA FATT PTIONS T1LE NZA-009"8 ADATED APRIL. .
JANVARY 4 2023 AT 08:00 AV

(& HED TV e
{EXGESMIONS 12,3587, BARD 1D AL NGT A& SUIYEY MATER)

ANY ENCRGACHMEAT, ENCUMBRANGL VICLATIIN, VAIATION, DR ACVEIFG
GIRCUNETANCE APFECTING THE TITUE THAT WOLLD B DLCLDSER Y AN,
CIPTLE TE LANG SUTIEY oF THE AN, 1Y SSEROACHHENTY CXSTING O TWS PATE o
e i LW ARDOR A STgn LA

MORELTCTION AS o O PeCOmDED WA,
T 8w D063 OR

CRpREL

EARBWENT, BURDING LIVCHSS, NOTES,
LRSI ATES! S phorte e
Rreson: 1 ProrLATY

A e OF CULVER SOE OF THE
‘SUAU CT PROPERTY ENCROACHES 0 70 28 FEET ONTD THE PROPERTY
& WWITHIUT & KNCWN EASENENT.
T BADING NORTHEAST SIDE OF THE SUBECT
ENGRORGIES 03 FEEE ENTOTHE LU Ve RO RIS 1 Wokr
WITHOUT A KNGWA EASEMENT.

NING INFORMA
LZONING INFORMA

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY OF
Lot 14-A, according to the Resurvey of Lots 14, 15,
16 and 17, Block “A", Mountain Brook
Village, as recorded in Map Bock 183, Page 48, in the
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama

TO. STEWART THLE BUARANTY, CRPITAL LG, AN AL
COMPNNY, DR WAY APPEAR
THSIS TO CERTIEY THAT = SUAVEY ON WHICH IT WADEDN
ACCORTIANTE YWTH THE 202¢
TITLE SURVEYS. (SHED AND ADUPTED BY ALTAAND N3PS, AND RACLUZES ITEWS &
12248 10,11 12,14, 1817, MO |ASLE A THERECE. THE RELD WURA Vol COUPLETED OM

oarE:

e
ALABAVA 1, 18884
BEING THE BAVE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A TITLE REPORT PREPARED §Y STEWART TILE
GUARANTY . COMMATMENT FILE NUMBER A0PSIR DATED JAMLRY 4, XT3 AT 000 AM.

LEGAL DESCARTION FRON TITLE COMMITMENT

L 1A, mertetiog I esirve o Lot T4, 45,13 w17, W . Moumien et
Vagm, Faedn.

¥ NOTES 4
AL ammsmmm AND DXSTANCEE RAE OFED AND ACTUAL WNLEEE.
CTHERWSE D, PLATREROR

UNDERGROLND PCRTIONS O FOUNGATIONS, FOUTINGS, DR (1 IR UNEERGROUND
STAUCTLIRES WERE NAT LOCATED NLESS GTHERWSE NOTE.

TIAS SLRVEY 15 VAL DNLY WHH AN RKGNAL SIGNATURE AND A LEGIERLE SEAL

Iu‘m.n'v s‘rATEmM'I'
THE| WTIES! Wﬂ
AN UNDERGROUNT UTILITY BLRVEY mmﬁwmnmu ENGINEE R/BURVEY OF
N UTUITIES OVPROMSE ALL SUTH
UTTES T ATEA amsuusamz ABANDONED, THE ENOINEERISUVEYOR
DOES HOT VIARRANT THA mmmnn;mummr-z
mlmwnwmmsmmwmuuun :‘F{!

PRIOR LUy
COMPANIES AN ALABAVIA ONE CAL AT 1-00-280- 5525 THS WAY ALSO REDUIRE
=2

1 THE EXAGT 4,
FORTH I

THR SIRVEYORS CERTIFICATION ANG WAY NG BE UBED, NOR VAY COPTES € DELVEREDTO.

MY OT~ER PARTY OR LISEZ FOR ANY GTHER PURPGSE. WITHCUT LIMITATION. ARRINGTON

AN LAND SURVEYING INC EXPRESELY DISCLAYS ANY DUTY OR OBLIGATION
TOWARDS ANY PARTY THAT 5 NOT ENTIRED 14 T EURVEVOR'S CERTIFICATE.
ADDAESS

J kARRJNGFON ENGINEERING

‘ r Cvil EnzIneers - Survevors - Land Pianne~s

A FL
Prov-cHe ] TR

( e . THE PROPERTY IS ZONED M2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT
H ——— ZONING CONDITICN EXTSTING
! T UTUTY PALE ——-Of =——  OVERMEAD ELECTRIC TV =

& LGHT POLF
to® wATER MEER ASPHALT i
!om o oas WETER TONCRETE : +

O CORNER MONUMENT ca" befora you dig.

L | Call 2 working days befors digging.
¥ the Lawl

TOEAEH & DESCRrTY
17 covcran vzan, o

= G;\2023 PROKCTS\B1C7Z ~ 2701 Coheds Re. Mir Drook, AL Bavy\DWG\B1072.¢ng



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

Dana O. Hazen, AICP

Director of Planning, Building &
Sustainability

56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213
Telephone: 205/802-3816

Fax: 205.879.6913
hazend@minbrook.org
www.minbrook.org

DATE: November 13, 2023

TO: Mayor, City Council & City Manager

FROM: Dana Hazen, City Planner

RE: ROW Encroachment Agreement — 3613 Montclair Road

The applicant wishes to build a single family dwelling on the Res-A site shown below in red. This property
has road frontage on the unpaved road ROW shown in blue:

- . . —
! a7 a” . P I
AL i 2. p Lsa =
J et / N
i t P L. =
i ' 55 Il — |
~ i .36 WA P £
L e et I E
Nl L{)\.a“ v < i HE
T P e SR
\A ‘;,\c*"’y’
't“‘\;-’,( "
Lol ,ﬁc.\"\% 5 -
L 201 2323 |
2 - ; i)
t g; i o 7
e 3 o 321
i 2 -
2 I 202 { 5 eyt P
£ | s
£ B2204 ] 2319 16
E | ! i E _
2 U a0 4 ha CIR
= . = S i dik
I 208 s
2210¢ 1213 1 G it [ |
‘ - 4 !
- 231 .y
: S |
2214 | I'.
X | Y
= \ |

L il

The subject ROW was created in 1927 as a 40-foot right-of-way to serve 4 lots at the southern terminus of
the ROW, in the City of Birmingham at that time. The subject single family lot (taken together with several
acres on the south side of Montclair Road) was subsequently annexed into the city of Mountain Brook and
zoned Residence-A.

See attached plan and profile for the driveway (embedded in the encroachment agreement). The applicant
has been working with the Fire Marshal on the driveway as to its ability to support emergency vehicles
weight and turnaround; it has been approved accordingly.



THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY:

Whit Colvin

Bishop Colvin, LLC
1910 First Avenue North
Birmingham, AL 35203

JEFFERSON COUNTY }
STATE OF ALABAMA }

RIGHT-OF-WAY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT

This Right of Way Encroachment License Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered
this day of , 2023, by and between the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama,
a municipal corporation (hereinafter the “City” or “Licensor”), and Patrick S. Cooney and
Virginia L. Cooney as trustees of the Lizbeth B. Cooney 2011 Qualified Personal Residence
Trust No. 1 (hereinafter individually or collectively referenced for purposes of this Agreement
as the “Licensee™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Licensee represents that they own the following real property located in
the City of Mountain Brook, Jefferson County, Alabama:

Address: 3613 Montclair Road, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213
Parcel ID #:  28-00-05-1-002-019.000
Legal Description:  See attached Exhibit A

(the “Property”);

WHEREAS, the Licensee has proposed to develop the Property as a single family,
detached, residential dwelling (the “Development Plan”); and

WHEREAS, access to the Property is provided by a forty (40) foot wide, unimproved
public right-of~way which extends to the Property from Montclair Road, as depicted on the
survey attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “City Right-of~Way”); and

WHEREAS, the Licensee desires to install and maintain a private drive within the City
Right-of-Way in accordance with the plan (the “Plan”) prepared by Live Oak Engineering, dated
the 17" day of February, 2023, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C (hereinafter the
“Improvement”), and intends that the Improvement will be used as access to the Property by the
occupants of the Property, their guests and invitees, City fire, police and emergency vehicles, and
other service and emergency vehicles; and

WHEREAS, part or all of the area in which the Improvement will be installed lies within
and encroaches upon the City Right of Way (hereinafter, the “Encroachment Area”); and



WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that, under the specific facts and
circumstances, the significant public benefit of constructing the Improvement within the City
Right-of-Way justifies the use of City Right-of~Way for the purposes requested; and

WHEREAS, subject to terms, conditions, and understandings herein, the City agrees to
grant the Licensee a license to install and use the encroaching Improvement within the City
Right-of-Way.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties
agree as follows:

L. The City grants the Licensee license to utilize the City Right-of-Way for purposes
reasonably related to the construction, installation, maintenance and use of above-described
encroaching Improvement within the Encroachment Area (the “License”).

2. The Licensee agrecs and acknowledges that this Agreement grants only a license,
not any interest, title, permanent right, or estate. The grant made hereunder runs with land and to
Licensee and subsequent purchasers, mortgagees, and occupants of the Property, but not to any
other lands or parties. Further, the Licensee agrees to not claim any title interest in the
Encroachment Area by entering into this Agreement or by its use of any contemplated
encroaching Improvement, the Licensee, for itself and its successors and assigns, recognizing
that the Encroachment Area remains a public way.

3. The Licensee agrees to (a) keep the Encroachment Area clean and free of debris,
weeds or overgrown grass, (b) maintain the contemplated encroaching Improvement in good and
sound condition, and (c) not use the Encroachment Area or any encroaching Improvement in a
manner that creates a hazard or causes damage to any third persons or adjacent properties.

4 The Licensee may not assign or transfer this Agreement (or any benefit, right or
obligation hereunder) to any third party (except to subsequent purchasers, mortgagees, and
occupants of the Property) without advance written consent by the City, which consent shail not
be unreasonably withheld.

5. All plans, designs and work to construct any contemplated encroaching
Improvement shall be subject to review and approval of the City’s Building Inspection
Department, or such other department as the City may designate. Further, the Licensee agrees
that all operations related to the installation or maintenance of any such Improvement will
comply with applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations (including but
not limited to, license and permit requirements) that relate to those operations.

6. The Licensee shall not permit any mechanic’s or materialman’s lien to be filed
against the City or concerning the Encroachment Area by reason of any labor, services, materials
or equipment supplied or claimed to have been supplied to construct or maintain any encroaching
Improvement (collectively, a “Lien”). If such a Lien is filed, then the Licensee, after notice of its
filing, promptly shall either (a) cause the same to be discharged by depositing adequate funds in
court or issuing a bond; or (b) indemmify the City against any loss from a Lien by posting
security or taking other actions that are reasonably satisfactory to the City.

2



7. The Licensee, for itself and on behalf of any of its heirs, personal representatives,
authorized assigns or other persons or entities that may succeed to its interest in this Agreement
(collectively the “Licensee” for purposes of this provision) agrees to waive, release, indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the City, and its officers, employees, and representatives (collectively
for purposes of this provision, the “City”), from and against any claim, liability, loss, expense
(including, reasonable attorney fees and costs of court), demand or action asserted against the
City by the Licensee or by any third party claiming personal injury, property damage or any
other loss of any kind (collectively, a “Claim”) that arises from or is in any manner related to (a)
the Licensee’s use of the License granted herein or the Encroachment Area, or (b) any
encroaching Improvement placed in the City Right-of-Way. The scope of this indemnification
obligation includes Claims that are caused or allegedly caused in whole or part by the negligence
of the City; provided that the Licensee shall not be obligated hereunder to indemnify the City for
Claims that are caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City.

8. If the Licensee removes or substantially modifies an encroaching Improvement
after this Agreement is executed, it shall not replace or construct another or different
Improvement or structure in the City Right-of-Way without advance approval from the City;
provided that nothing herein shall prohibit the Licensee from maintaining, repairing or
refurbishing any encroaching Improvement contemplated by this Agreement.

9. In the event that the City elects to improve, or otherwise authorizes the
improvement of, the City Right of Way as a public street or road such that access to the Property
is provided thereby, the License shall be revoked, and this Agreement terminated. In such event,
all Improvements may be removed by City at its discretion.

10.  All notices that may be required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have
been properly given if in writing and (a) if personally delivered, or (b) sent either by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows, or by nationally recognized overnight
courier to the following address (or such other address as a party may designate in writing):

To the City:
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama
Attention: City Manager
56 Church Street
Mountain Brook, AL 35213

To the Licensee:
Patrick S. Cooney and Virginia L. Cooney as trustees of the Lizbeth B. Cooney
2011 Qualified Personal Residence Trust No. 1

, AL

Notices shall be deemed given upon receipt or refusal of delivery.

11. Miscellaneous Provisions.



(a) This Agreement may not be amended or modified unless all parties execute a
writing that is signed by their duly authorized representatives.

(b)  The failure of the City to enforce any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of its right to subsequently compel enforcement of
that or any other term, condition or provision herein. The rights, benefits and obligations under
this Agreement may be waived only in a writing signed by the parties.

(c) This Agreement, and the conditions, terms and provisions herein, do not create,
and are not intended to create or confer any benefit to any third party, except as set forth in this
Agreement.

(d) This Agreement contains the complete agreement of the parties concerning the
subject matter herein. Any prior negotiation, agreement or understanding, whether oral or
written, concerning the matters addressed herein is superseded and of no effect unless expressed
herein.

(e) This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement.
Signature pages may be transmitted by facsimile or other form of electronic transmission, and
any signature so transmitted will be given the same force and effect as an original signature.

D If requested by the City, Licensee shall record a fully executed form of this
Agreement in the real property records of the Probate Court for Jefferson County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on
the date hereinabove set forth.

LICENSOR:
ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA
. By: _
City Clerk Stewart H, Welch, III
Its Mayor
LICENSEE:

Patrick S. Cooney as frustee of the Lizbeth B.
Cooney 2011 Qualified Personal Residence Trust
No. 1



Virginia L. Cooney as trustee of the Lizbeth B.
Cooney 2011 Qualified Personal Residence Trust
No. 1

STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public duly commissioned in and for the County and
State aforesaid, hereby certify that Stewart H. Welch, III, whose name as Mayor of the City of
Mountain Brook, Alabama, is signed to the foregoing mstrument, and who is known to me,
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the mstrument, he, as
such Mayor and with full authority, executed same voluntarily for and as the act of said municipal
corporation.

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2023.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission expires:

STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public duly commissioned in and for the County and
State aforesaid, hereby certify that Patrick S. Cooney, whose name as trustee of the Lizbeth B.
Cooney 2011 Qualified Personal Residence Trust No. 1, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and
who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the
instrument, he, as such Trustee and with full authority, executed same voluntarily for and as the act
of said Trust.

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2023.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission expires:



STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public duly commissioned in and for the County and
State aforesaid, hereby certify that Virginia L. Cooney, whose name as trustee of the Lizbeth B.
Cooney 2011 Qualified Personal Residence Trust No. 1, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and
who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the
instrument, she, as such Trustee and with full authority, executed same voluntarily for and as the act
of said Trust.

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2023,

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission expires:




EXHIBIT A

The Property

Legal Description:

A tract of land sitnated in the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 5, Township 18 South, Range
2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: Commence at the southwest
comer of said quarter-quarter section and thence run east along the south line of said quarter-quarter for a
distance of 816.65 feet 1o a point; thence turn an angle to the left of 87 degrees 40 minutes 44 seconds and run
northeasterly for a distance of 61.31 feet to the point of beginning; thence continue along last stated course for a
distance of 105.78 feet to a point; thence turn an angle to the right of 24 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds and run
northeasterly for a distance of 107.80 feet to a point; thence turn an angle to the left of 28 degrees 15 minutes 34
seconds and run northerly for a distance of 148.92 feet to a point; thence turn an angle to the left of 102 degrees
46 minutes 35 seconds and run southwesterly for a distance of 218.92 feet to a point; thence turn an angle to the
left of 77 degrees 16 minutes 34 seconds and run south for a distance of 279.97 feet to a point; thence turn an
angle to the right of 56 degrees 16 minutes 51 seconds and run southwesterly for a distance 0f 25.71 feet to a
point; thence turn an angle to the left of 144 degrees 02 minutes 48 seconds and run east for a distance of
176.33 feet to the point of beginning.



EXHIBIT B

Survey



EXHIBIT C

The Plan

Ay

)

T50:

emmnmgnesy

MDY waTLE
= BLEvangy

> resmon
oM 11T 0
e
e i
TETRONCLMRT

it on

ey —

T
GRAPHIG. SCALT
M

oy

LIVE OAK
FHGINEERAING
332
i2y
>x0Q
z242

L m
@tz
w5
Rzk
S®m3
£82

[oetiime

ROADWAY
PLANT
PROFILE

TaTe eran
[$ermann 1or |

GM-1




	Pre-Meeting Agenda
	1. Cherokee Road
	3. Speed limit for Colonial Hills
	4. Gresham Smith-Old Brook Trail
	5. Conditional Use-2701 Cahaba Road
	6. ROW 3613 Montclair Road



